



GROUP INSURANCE COMMISSION MEETING
Thursday, February 26, 2026
8:30 A.M.-10:00 A.M.

Meeting held virtually through online audio-video platform (ZOOM) and accessible on the GIC’s YouTube channel.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING

NUMBER: 	Seven Hundred and One
DATE:		February 26, 2026
TIME:		8:30 A.M.
PLACE:	Meeting held virtually through online audio-video platform (ZOOM) and accessible on the GIC’s YouTube channel

Commissioners Present: 
VALERIE SULLIVAN (Chair, Public Member) 
BOBBI KAPLAN (Vice Chair, NAGE) 
MATTHEW GORZKOWICZ (Secretary of Administration and Finance) Designee:  Dana Sullivan 
MICHAEL CALJOUW (Commissioner of Insurance) Designee: Rebecca Butler  
DARREN AMBLER (Public Member)
EDWARD T. CHOATE (Public Member)  
MARTIN CURLEY (Public Safety)
TAMARA P. DAVIS (Public Member)
JANE EDMONDS (Retiree)
GERZINO GUIRAND (Council 93, AFSCME, AFL-CIO) 
EILEEN P. MCANNENY (Public Member) 
MELISSA MURPHY-RODRIGUEZ (Massachusetts Municipal Association)
KRISTIN PEPIN (NAGE)
DEAN ROBINSON (Massachusetts Teachers Association) 
JASON SILVA (Massachusetts Municipal Association) 
ANNA SINAIKO, Ph.D. (Health Economist) 
CATHERINE WEST (Public Member) 








I. Introduction and Approval of the Minutes 
At 8:30 A.M. The Chair started the meeting and announced the Commissioners in attendance. The Chair turned the meeting to the Executive Director, Matthew Veno, to review the agenda for the meeting. 
Executive Director Veno reviewed the agenda. He then turned the meeting back to the Chair.
The Chair asked for a motion to approve minutes from the Commission meeting held on February 12, 2026. Commissioner Kaplan motioned to approve and Designee Sullivan seconded the motion. The General Counsel took a roll call vote. 
Chair Sullivan voted aye
Vice Chair Kaplan voted aye
Designee Sullivan voted aye
Designee Butler voted aye
Commissioner Ambler voted aye
Commissioner Choate voted yes
Commissioner Curley voted aye
Commissioner Davis voted aye
Commissioner Edmonds voted aye
Commissioner Guirand voted aye
Commissioner McAnneny voted aye
Commissioner Murphy-Roderiguez voted yes
Commissioner Pepin voted aye
Commissioner Robinson voted aye
Commissioner Silva voted yes
Commissioner Sinaiko voted aye
Commissioner West voted aye
The motion passed unanimously.
II. Executive Director’s Report
Presented by Matthew Veno, Executive Director and Members of Senior Staff
The Executive Director stated that there is no written Executive Director’s report due to the staff’s focus on the impact analyses requested by the Commissioners at the February 12, 2026 meeting. 
He welcomed back Jannine Dewar, Manager of Pharmacy and Ancillary Benefits, who returned from parental leave. He congratulated her on her new baby and stated that he and all GIC staff are happy to have her back. 
III. FY2027 Plan Design (VOTE)
Presented by Matthew Veno, Executive Director and Margaret Anshutz, Director of Health Policy and Analysis
The Executive Director stated that this vote was the plan design vote that was postponed from the last meeting. He said that Margaret Anshutz, Director of Analytics and Health Policy would present the findings of the analysis that the Commissioners requested. The request was extensive and had a very tight timeframe, he noted, and then he recognized the team that Ms. Anshutz leads and commended them for their incredible work. He stated the GIC received in excess of two hundred (200) pages of member feedback which, he noted, had been provided to the Commissioners. He then noted that Governor Healey requested that the Commission only approve the cut to GLP-1 medication coverage for weight management and refrain from adopting other proposals. The Executive Director recognized that the Governor’s position marked a significant shift in terms of the funding that the GIC was being asked to cut from their requested budget. He turned the meeting over to Ms. Anshutz. 
Ms. Anshutz informed the Commissioners of her presentation topics: information on the cost of living and health benefits; benchmarking GLP-1 medication for obesity; member scenario impacts; and benefit design changes. 
Ms. Anshutz first presented information on cost increases for the GIC’s benefits and other expenses, such as childcare, food expenditures, state employee salary growth, housing expenditures, and regional inflation. She noted that the data demonstrates healthcare costs are growing rapidly in the northeast market, more rapidly than in GIC health plans which indicates that rising costs are tied to the market and not specific to the GIC. Median state salary is not growing as quickly as childcare, food expenditures, and healthcare costs. And, she noted, while housing costs and regional inflation are growing slower than the aforementioned items, they are still growing steadily. She stated that lower-salary individuals are being particularly impacted as they do not have the discretionary income to cover rising costs. She presented specific growth rates on each. 
She then presented on state employee health plan coverage for GLP-1 medication to treat obesity. Seventeen state employee health plans, including the GIC, are still covering GLP-1 medication for weight management. Of those seventeen, at least three employers who still cover this indication have also implemented other measures to try and manage costs, similar to the GIC’s implementation of Vida Health. Around twenty-two thousand (22,000) GIC members are currently taking GLP-1 medication for weight management at a cost to the state budget of forty-six million three hundred thousand dollars ($46.3M). This accounts for 2.4 percentage points of the aggregate rate increase. While the medications are expensive, she underscored that they are also life-changing for those who take them. She noted that when coverage for such medications are cut, many health gains are lost for those using them, and lower-income members generally cannot pay out of pocket when coverage is ended. She stated that chronic conditions associated with obesity such as hypertension, diabetes, and coronary artery disease disproportionately impact the BIPOC community. 
Ms. Anshutz then showed data on GLP-1 obesity-indicated coverage by employer size. The data comes from a WTW national employer survey conducted in the summer of 2025. She highlighted that it is not surprising to find small group employers not covering GLP-1 medication for weight management, with only twenty-eight percent (28%) providing coverage and not considering dropping coverage. She said that the GIC is comparable to the largest group employers where forty-six percent (46%). She further stated that nineteen percent (19%) have such coverage currently in place but are considering removing it. Overall, the data shows that many employers are still covering GLP-1 medication for obesity, however, many are wrestling with dropping that coverage as a cost-cutting measure.
The Executive Director provided information about coverage in the Massachusetts market. He stated that while there is very little current data (2026), an informal, qualitative survey indicated that coverage here is shrinking. Many carriers in Massachusetts took steps to eliminate it from their standard plan offerings, and those who do cover it with an additional premium increment to the cost of standard coverage. It is estimated that somewhere between five (5) and twenty (20) percent of employers are are electing GLP-1 coverage with this added premium. He stated that the larger the employer is the more likely they are to offer such coverage, but also this coverage is clustered in the life sciences and healthcare industries. When GLP-1 medication coverage has been cut for treatment of obesity, there is a significant uptick in utilization of the medications being prescribed for other, covered conditions. Carriers have taken steps to tighten utilization management criteria to prevent inappropriate migration into the other coverage categories. He noted that the currently proposed budget would also require removal of GLP-1 medication coverage for obesity under MassHealth Medicaid. 
Ms. Anshutz then presented a few scenarios on fictional members to demonstrate what the status quo (premiums and co-pay structure) and all proposed changes would mean for a member with a particular profile. Ms. Anshutz reminded Commissioners that the results of the last GIC member survey showed a member preference for an increase in premiums, rather than co-pays or deductibles. The first scenario presented was based on a hypothetical fifty-five (55) year old member making fifty-thousand dollars ($50,000) annually, who had high health risk status and higher than average insurance use. Under the proposed benefit design changes, this member would pay more out of pocket by One hundred and seventy-six dollars ($176.00). Ms. Anshutz noted that under the scenario with all proposed changes, the savings in premium are outweighed by the increased co-pays and deductible. The second scenario is based on a hypothetical twenty-five (25) year old employee, who was making ninety-thousand dollars ($90,000) annually, who had a lower health risk status, and who had below average insurance use. Under the proposed benefit design changes, this member would pay less out of pocket by one hundred and four dollars ($104.00). 
Ms. Anshutz then presented the fiscal year 2027 (FY27) distribution of premium equivalent rates (non-Medicare plans). The weighted average for individuals is one thousand two hundred and fourteen ($1,214.00) and for family plans is two thousand nine hundred and thirty-four dollars ($2,943.00). These are the full-cost premium numbers and not solely the member share. She emphasized that the weighted average can hide the wide variation. She noted that individual rates range from nine hundred and twenty-three dollars to one thousand eight hundred and seventy dollars ($923.00 to $1870.00). The family plan rates range from two thousand and twenty-one dollars to a high of four thousand one hundred and sixty-two dollars ($2,221.00 to 4,162.00). She then presented the weighted financial impacts that each proposed benefit for the individual and family plan would have on premiums. She reminded Commissioners that these are weighted averages and the actual impacts vary widely, depending on the plan. For example, the change proposed to Urgent Care Copay has no reduction on the individual premium but it has a reduction of one dollar ($1.00) for family plan premiums; cutting obesity-indicated coverage of GLP-1 medication would decrease the individual plan premiums by twenty-eight dollars ($28.00) and decrease family plan premiums by sixty-eight dollars ($68.00). 
Commissioner Sinaiko sought clarification that the numbers being presented are a total monthly impact. Ms. Anshutz affirmed that the impacts are, in fact, based on a total monthly premium (not the member’s share of premium). 
Designee Sullivan stated that the administration is prioritizing healthcare affordability. She proposed that the cost shifting proposals should not be considered and the only focus should be on cutting obesity-related GLP-1 coverage. She repeated that many purchasers have dropped coverage. She stated that the Governor’s working group was recently launched to address the underlying driver to healthcare costs. She proposed to revise the previously tabled plan design vote to solely eliminate GLP-1 coverage for obesity beginning in FY27. Designee Butler seconded it. 
The General Counsel stated that this cannot be a motion to amend, since there was no other motion made, but it could be a motion to drop GLP-1 obesity-indicated coverage. The Chair reiterated that the motion would be to eliminate GLP-1 obesity-indicated coverage.  
Commissioner Davis reminded the Commission that as a public body, we need to remain objective and neutral. She stated that Designee Sullivan provided good advocacy. She stated that there needs to be more discussion on both premium changes and coverage of GLP-1 medication, which will have two different impacts. She urged people to consider this not just as putting out a fire and instead look at it as a multi-year strategy. She believes in equity for all, which is difficult to do, but she believes there is a balance that can be achieved. She suggested that the Commission look at this as a two-year strategy, acknowledging that the GIC cannot vote on anything for next year; but, she suggested, that GIC consider a lower increase in premium (such as the deductible) and then reconsider it next year. Instead of completely disregarding cost sharing, she urged others to consider a small increase than proposed and also consider GLP-1 medication coverage. She would like there to be a deductible specifically for the GLP-1 medications. She posited a need to consider an alternative to simply saying no to either or both GLP-1 coverage (of obesity-indications) or adjustments to cost sharing. 
Commissioner Edmonds echoed many of Commissioner Davis’ comments. She stated that she appreciates the Governor’s letter, especially the recognition that the Commission is responsible for this decision. She urged that the GIC use the next year to focus on other adjustments and design a more sustainable solution, rather than an immediate transition to cutting coverage (of GLP-1 coverage for obesity indications). She stated that the scenarios presented on members downplay the harm and is not reflective of the impacts that members would face, based on what she’s hearing from members. She also emphasized that this is the first time the Commission is considering cutting an evidence-based treatment that is shown to be effective. She stated that she could not vote to eliminate coverage and still has many unanswered questions. 
Vice Chair Kaplan stated that she appreciates the Governor recommending that we not shift costs to employees by increasing co-pays and deductibles. She echoes Commissioner Edmonds’ points, noting that she has read all the feedback from members and all the GIC provided data and information. She noted that the GIC just implemented Vida Health and there is no data on the impact that will have. She stated that the scope of disparate impacts to low-income families, people of color, and single-parent households is not fully known. She acknowledged that the GIC is the largest health insurance purchaser in the state and stated that she cannot support elimination of GLP-1 coverage for obesity indications. She suggested that the Commission form a subcommittee to deal with GLP-1 coverage and that it should work with the Governor’s affordability working group to solve this problem. She recognized the great work done by the GIC staff. She emphasized that all the data points to negative, disparate impacts to vulnerable communities, for a short-term budget fix. There are a lot of new developments on the horizon and she shared that Novo Nordisk is lowering the prices of Wegovy and Saxenda by fifty percent (50%). She proposed that we vote against cutting GLP-1 coverage. Employees have clearly stated that premium increases are understandable, as those are spread out not only among everyone, but also over twenty-four (24) pay periods, so the impact feels far less. She stated that members feel the impacts far less when it’s an increase in premium. She stated that only people with high incomes will be able to afford GLP-1 medication for weight loss if the GIC cuts coverage and that is immensely inequitable. The improvement in health benefits saving alone will demonstrate in years to come, she said, that it is a good decision to make not to eliminate coverage. 
The Chair observed that this coming year will be challenging, budget-wise, for the state, and that the GIC has responsibility to taxpayers and the budget, along with GIC members. She acknowledged that the cost shifting is challenging for members, and they have made it clear that they do not want that. She also feels that the GIC needs to acquiesce to the Governor’s request. To have some degree of fiduciary responsibility, she thinks, cutting GLP-1 for obesity would greatly close the budget gap. She believes that this is a way to serve both the taxpayer constituents and GIC members. 
Designee Sullivan stated that cutting GLP-1 medication coverage for obesity is part of a larger strategy to lower the costs of these medications. She stated that the aim is to have GIC, MassHealth, and others join together in applying pressure to lower the costs by refusing to pay the exorbitant price for GLP-1 medications. She stated that she hopes that by using this market power, it will force drug manufacturers to lower prices and then coverage can be added back. She noted that the historical and currently projected double digit rate increases are unsustainable. She continued that if GLP-1 coverage is cut for obesity, along with the changes voted on in the prior GIC meeting, the premium increase will be an average of about seven and a half percent (7.5%).
Commissioner Robinson asked a procedural question around the current motion on the table. He asked if they cannot follow the agenda in order to vote on everything except GLP-1 coverage, because he stated that GLP-1 coverage warrants much more discussion. 
The General Counsel stated that Commissioner Robinson can move to suspend the current motion, which would table it temporarily. 
Commissioner Ambler suggested that the GIC’s proposed average premium rates are significantly higher than the market. He likened the GIC’s current state of affairs to being on a sinking ship and throwing deck chairs over in an attempt to not sink. He offered the that if the GIC negotiated better prices, it would bring the average claim cost, or unit price down, but would not change utilization. He proffered that the GIC has a utilization issue and proposed that changes to coverage could fix that issue. He then said that the GIC has three or four percent (3-4%) of its members on these medications, a very small percentage, and likened this to “the tail wagging the dog”, creating a huge expense. He thinks these users are, and by default the GIC is, driving demand for these drugs as one of the largest plans in the country, claiming that the benefit does not outweigh the cost of these medications. He said that if costs come down after the GIC cuts it, GIC can then reconsider coverage. He believes that GIC has a duty to all constituent taxpayers and GIC members. He emphasized that taxpayers are subsidizing most of this coverage and those taxpayers who are not state employees do not have the opportunity to participate in GIC benefits. He believes that since most other people in the Commonwealth do not have GLP-1 coverage for obesity, it is unfair for the GIC to continue providing this coverage to members unless the costs come down and no longer outweigh the benefits of these medications. 
Commissioner McAnneny thanked the GIC staff for all the work they have done. She appreciated that the Governor is committed to addressing the underlying costs and said she will hold the Governor and Administration accountable for that pledge. She does not wish to have this conversation again and again every year at this time. She noted that these are very difficult decisions for everyone. She said that if GIC has benefits that are richer than MassHealth and the other commercial market plans, this budget year would not permit keeping the richer benefits. She believes that the GIC can use their market power to drive down costs and that the GIC should and ought to drive reform through their size. 
Ms. Anshutz corrected Commissioner Ambler’s assertion that market plans cost more than the GIC’s and that the GIC has a utilization problem. The data shows, she continued, that GIC plans have a high actuarial value and it’s not accurate to say that because they cost more, it’s a utilization problem. Also, she affirmed that, just like nationally, the problem is pricing. She also stated that regarding GLP-1 medications, while there are voices pushing to drop coverage to influence demand, she expects to see other products introduced this year that may lower costs. 
Commissioner Murphy-Roderiguez stated that she can understand why people might be tempted to make the argument that not many people are using this and therefore it should be cut but, she continued, that the whole purpose of insurance is to spread high costs across many members. Insurance operates under the principle that you pay in and if you need a benefit, it is available to you. She thinks this is a slippery slope and does not think it is ethical to determine which conditions are worthy of being insured when evidence-based treatment is available. Once a benefit is eliminated, it is almost impossible to get it back into a plan because you use that money elsewhere. She suggested that GIC should follow Connecticut’s example and make changes to reduce improper use. 
Vice Chair Kaplan underscored Commissioner Murphy-Roderiguez's points that when you cut something this large it will be extremely difficult to get it back into coverage. She corrected Commissioner Ambler that there are twenty-two thousand (22,000) members, not eighteen thousand (18,000) using these medications. Those with chronic diseases and co-morbidities cannot afford to lose this coverage. If GLP-1 coverage is eliminated for obesity, these members will get sicker and will cost the plan high amounts for different treatments of those chronic diseases and comorbidities. She reminded Commissioners that the GIC’s actual mission is to provide affordable, high quality health insurance to its members. She also understands the fiduciary responsibility, the budget, and the politics behind this issue but the GIC’s responsibility is also to our members. She is certain that if the GIC eliminates this coverage, it will not come back. 
Commissioner Robinson noted that he had made data requests to the GIC on enrollment numbers, GLP-1 prescriptions, what other drugs members taking GLP-1 medication are on, and how consistently members fill GLP-1 medication. He stated that the data tells a more nuanced story. There are over fifteen thousand seven hundred (15,700) members on heart-condition drugs and around seventeen thousand (17,000) members on hypertension medication. Obesity is inseparable from these conditions because it contributes to them. Fat tissue causes inflammation, causes insulin resistance, etc. Therefore, when a doctor treats a patient with GLP-1 medication, they are treating the root cause of hypertension and heart disease. Cutting treatment, he continued, results in the GIC still paying for all other treatments. He does not believe, based on the data, that this is a problem of use. He said that about thirty-four thousand (34,000) members are using GLP-1 medications and only about fourteen percent (14%) fill that prescription for a full year. He stated that the average member uses it only for seven months. Over four thousand (4,000) members fill a GLP-1 prescription once or twice and then stop. He emphasized that the data does not support that this is a problem of overuse, but is very much a problem of pricing. Those filling these medications are not healthy people chasing weight loss for lifestyle, but the data shows that these are people who have existing comorbidities. The medications only provide cardiovascular benefits with consistent use. Cutting coverage pushes members into the category of using this kind of drug and prematurely ending it before you realize clinical gains. He is open to working on strategies to use the GIC’s size to bring down pricing, but he does not think that should be addressed today. He believes that the GIC can negotiate better prices without eliminating coverage. He does not support eliminating coverage for people who need this to treat multiple conditions.  
The Chair noted that the vote is only to eliminate coverage for obesity and that members who are being treated with GLP-1 medication for other comorbidities will still be covered. 
Commissioner Sinaiko stated that following Connecticut’s example is currently infeasible because of the contract structure and rebates. She thinks GIC might need to cut coverage in order to appropriately restructure it. She stated that while changes to cost sharing are almost impossible to roll back, adding back coverage that is effective is not prohibitive. She recognized that this is a really hard decision and it has impacts across the state budget. 
Ms. Anshutz reminded Commissioners that, in the Fall, the GIC provided an analysis of measures evaluated to maintain GLP-1 coverage while controlling costs. For instance, the data showed that if BMI thresholds were changed, among other potential changes, the GIC would actually lose a lot more money because of the way the contract guarantees and rebates are structured. 
Designee Butler stated that we should put our trust on those who are working on affordability. She thinks the GLP-1's issue will come up again and again. She thinks the right thing to do is cut coverage with the aim of bringing down prices and reinstituting coverage. 
Commissioner Davis stated that having “skin in the game” is good and is necessary. She thinks there are certain people whose doctors are prescribing because they ask and not because they need it, medically. She asked whether the GIC could institute a meaningful copay for those individuals who want GLP1s (for non-diabetic treatment).  
The Vice Chair stated that she strongly disagrees that the people are manipulating the system. Vida requires medical records and documentation to ensure that prescribing is appropriate, medically. They will not approve members for cosmetic purposes. 
The Executive Director interjected that, currently, the GIC covers GLP-1 medications for any FDA approved conditions, including diabetes, sleep apnea, M.A.S.H., obesity, and potentially a handful of others. The list is growing, but it’s still a defined list. Under the proposal up for vote, people who have obesity would only qualify for coverage if they have another qualifying condition. 
The Chair asked for clarification, again, on what would be covered if the proposal up for vote was passed. The Executive Director affirmed that it would eliminate coverage for those who are being prescribed a GLP-1 medication for obesity only. 
The Chair then stated that the Governor has asked that the GIC cut this coverage to apply pressure to bring down prices.
Designee Sullivan asked for the GIC staff to explain what will happen to members who are currently only GLP-1 medication, if this was passed, and they lose coverage. 
The Executive Director stated that if coverage is eliminated, the GIC would need to focus on supporting members’ transition, acknowledging that this would be very disruptive to members who are on these medications. He stated that the GIC would need to wind down Vida and added that the GIC had selected Vida because they would be able to assist with transitioning members to other treatments. He stated that the GIC anticipates that the contract would be restructured for this purpose. He noted that there are other programs that are available to help provide members with the lowest cost of the drug possible, if coverage is eliminated. 
Commissioner Murphy-Rodriguez asked whether the twenty-two thousand (22,000) members currently using GLP-1 medications are only on the medication for obesity. She asked whether cutting only for obesity would result in partial savings because there’s a subset that will remain on GLP-1 medications for other reasons. 
The Executive Director stated that had been considered and asked Ms. Anshutz to answer. Ms. Anshutz stated that the twenty-two thousand (22,000) have the prescription for obesity and not diabetes. The Executive Director recognized that some members would likely migrate back to a covered GLP-1 medication for a different, FDA approved diagnosis, and the savings of eliminating coverage were projected assuming this dynamic. 
Commissioner Robinson said, according to the data he reviewed, of the twenty-two thousand (22,000) on GLP-1 medications, about fifteen thousand seven hundred (15,700) are also on heart disease medications and seventeen thousand (17,000) or so on hypertension medication, six thousand (6,000) others take drugs for other metabolic issues. This is not about vanity. Members are treating multiple comorbidities and he stated it would be an error to eliminate coverage for the root cause, which is obesity. He urged the Commission not only to consider financial issues, but to look at the whole picture and the greater impacts on health as well. This should not be a solely financial decision, but the decision should be made on clinical reasons too. 
The Chair emphasized that while it’s a difficult decision, the Commission should not ignore the financial implications. She stated that the GIC has a responsibility to the taxpayers at large. 
Commissioner Edmonds stated that the rich discussion on many different aspects of this underscore her original point that this needs more evaluation and discussion. She stated that the GIC needs to balance the health impacts that will cause permanent harm to members against the expense. She thinks that this type of problem needs a year to work on a solution and the Commission should not just cut coverage. 
The Vice Chair stated that the focus of this has been through the financial lens and it is not the function of the GIC to balance the budget. The GIC’s responsibility is to provide high quality, affordable health care to the members. Cutting this coverage for financial reasons will have a lasting, disparate impact on vulnerable populations. She supported Commissioner Edmond’s suggestion to delay and find other solutions. She stated that cutting coverage will be a huge mistake. 
The Chair stated again that the GIC is responsible to the taxpayers. The General Counsel restated the Motion on the table.  The Executive Director stated that there was a motion and it has been seconded. The General Counsel took a roll call vote. 
Chair Sullivan voted aye
Vice Chair Kaplan voted no
Designee Sullivan voted aye
Designee Butler voted yes
Commissioner Ambler voted yes
Commissioner Choate voted yes
Commissioner Curley voted no
Commissioner Davis voted aye
Commissioner Edmonds voted no
Commissioner Guirand voted no
Commissioner McAnneny voted aye
Commissioner Murphy-Roderiguez voted no
Commissioner Pepin voted no
Commissioner Robinson voted no
Commissioner SIlva voted yes
Commissioner Sinaiko voted yes
Commissioner West voted yes
The vote passes with Vice Chair Kaplan, Commissioner Curley, Commissioner Edmonds, Commissioner Guirand, Commissioner Murphy-Roderiguez, Commissioner Pepin, and Commissioner Robinson opposing. 
Commissioner McAnneny offered a motion to create a new product that caps reimbursement based on a percentage of Medicare for next year’s open enrollment. She stated that the known issue is the unit cost and the GIC needs to have the political will to make a bold change. Commissioner Davis seconded. 
The General Counsel asked Commissioner McAnneny to restate motion. She stated that her motion is for this Commission to consider designing a product for our members that will cap reimbursement rates as a percentage of Medicare. The Executive Director requested that the motion be raised under new business, later in the meeting, and that it be considered in the next meeting. The General Counsel stated that it was formed as a request so does not need a vote, but it can be discussed at a future meeting. 
Commissioner Ambler asked if a motion to forgo other plan changes needed to be made. The Executive Director stated that we do not need that, but if others want to make other motions on other plan design changes they may do so. If there are no motions related to specifics proposals, those would not move forward. 
Commissioner Davis asked whether there would be a discussion of cost sharing. The Executive Director stated that she could raise it now if she wanted. Commissioner Davis stated that there is not much time to discuss the matter and requested that cost sharing be discussed at the next meeting. The Chair stated that the challenge was that the members have spoken and the data has been analyzed and the members are not in favor of other changes and the GIC should be respectful of their request. She further reminded Commissioner Davis that the Governor only requested the GLP-1 coverage change, which would help with the budget. Commissioner Davis stated that she strongly believes that it is the GIC’s fiduciary responsibility to consider the proposal and look at these things. 
Designee Sullivan inserted that she is pleased with the discussion and motioned to end the debate and move on. Commissioner McAnneny seconded. The Vice Chair asked for a restatement of the motion and it was restated. The General Counsel took a roll call vote.
Chair Sullivan voted aye
Vice Chair Kaplan voted yes
Designee Sullivan voted yes
Designee Butler voted yes
Commissioner Ambler voted yes
Commissioner Choate voted yes
Commissioner Curley voted yes
Commissioner Davis voted no
Commissioner Edmonds voted yes
Commissioner Guirand voted yes
Commissioner McAnneny voted yes
Commissioner Murphy-Roderiguez voted yes
Commissioner Pepin voted yes
Commissioner Robinson voted yes
Commissioner SIlva voted yes
Commissioner Sinaiko voted yes
Commissioner West voted yes
The vote passes with Commissioner Davis opposing. 
IV. CFO Report
Presented by Jennifer Hewitt, Chief Financial Officer
The CFO presented the spending trend over the last few months that was not available at the last meeting. She presented the state share spending which reflects the shifting of funding. She then presented the enrollee premium account and spending showing similar changes. She presented the projected spending across the months thus far against the actual spending. She reminded Commissioners of the prior year spending that was included in this year’s spend. She then showed the projections for the remaining plan year. Next, she presented the projected spend against the actual spend. Last, she presented the FY26 supplemental budget request, which is for $300,000,000.00 and reminded commissioners that this needs to be approved by April 15, 2026. 
V. Other Business/Adjournment
Presented by Vallerie Sullivan, Chair, and Matthew Veno, Executive Director
Commissioner McAnneny put forward a motion that the GIC offer a plan design that caps reimbursement rates as a percentage of Medicare and that this topic will be discussed at the next meeting. Commissioner Davis seconded. 
Commissioner Ambler asked if this would be actual implementation or only investigation. The Executive Director stated that the GIC cannot vote on plan design for FY28 until next year, but that it can be to discuss this at a later meeting. Commissioner McAnneny restated that she motioned for this to be discussed in April. The Executive Director requested that it be for the soonest meeting possible to account for staff priorities. Commissioner McAnneny assented to the request. 
Commissioner Robinson offered to amend the motion to include that the GIC also consider policies advanced by other states. 
Commissioner McAnneny said she did not oppose Commissioner Robinson’s amendment, but she had a hard stop at 10:28. She restated her motion accepting Commissioner Robinson’s suggested amendment. Commissioner Davis seconded. 
The motion was restated to have the GIC set as an agenda item for April or as soon as possible for consideration of a benefit package that ties reimbursement to a percent of Medicare payments and that the GIC also consider what other states are currently doing. Commissioner Davis seconded.
Chair Sullivan voted aye
Vice Chair Kaplan voted aye
Designee Sullivan voted aye
Designee Butler voted aye
Commissioner Ambler voted aye
Commissioner Choate voted aye
Commissioner Curley voted aye
Commissioner Davis voted aye
Commissioner Edmonds voted aye
Commissioner Guirand voted aye
Commissioner McAnneny voted aye
Commissioner Murphy-Roderiguez voted yes
Commissioner Pepin voted aye
Commissioner Robinson voted aye
Commissioner SIlva voted yes
Commissioner Sinaiko voted aye
Commissioner West voted yes
The vote passed unanimously. 
The Chair asked for other business and asked if there is any objection to adjourning. No objection was made and the meeting was adjourned. 

        GROUP INSURANCE COMMISSION MEETING   Thurs day,  February   26 , 2026   8:30 A.M. - 10:00   A.M.     Meeting held virtually through online audio - video platform (ZOOM) and accessible on the GIC’s YouTube  channel.     MINUTES OF THE MEETING     NUMBER:    Seven Hundred   and One   DATE:     February   26 , 2026   TIME:     8:30 A.M.   PLACE:   Meeting held virtually through online audio - video platform (ZOOM) and accessible on  the GIC’s YouTube channel     Commissioners Present:     VALERIE SULLIVAN (Chair, Public Member)    BOBBI KAPLAN (Vice Chair, NAGE)     MATTHEW GORZKOWICZ (Secretary of Administration and Finance) Designee:     Dana Sullivan    MICHAEL CALJOUW   (Commissioner of Insurance) Designee: Rebecca Butler      DARREN AMBLER (Public Member)   EDWARD T. CHOATE (Public Member)       MARTIN CURLEY (Public Safety)   TAMARA P. DAVIS (Public Member)   JANE EDMONDS (Retiree)   GERZINO GUIRAND (Council 93, AFSCME, AFL - CIO)    EILEEN P. MCANNENY (Public Member)    MELISSA MURPHY - RODRIGUEZ (Massachusetts Municipal Association)   KRISTIN PEPIN (NAGE)   DEAN ROBINSON (Massachusetts Teache rs Association)     JASON SILVA (Massachusetts Municipal Association)    ANNA SINAIKO, Ph.D. (Health Economist)    CATHERINE WEST (Public Member)                 

